THE PROCESS FOR CERTIFYING ONLINE COURSES AT JSU



ONLINE COURSE CERTIFICATION GUIDE

A GUIDE FOR ADMINISTRATORS & FACULTY

700 PELHAM RD N JACKSONVILLE, AL 36265 • JSU.EDU • INFO@JSU.EDU

Contents

Jacksonville State University Administrationv
Office of Online@JSU
Author(s)ii
Online Course Certification: An Introduction
Online Course Certification: Characteristics of a Certified Courseix
Reviewed & Certifiedix
Supported by Policies, Standards, and Support Mechanismsix
Engaged Instructorsix
Pedagogically Sound & Well Organizedix
Relevant Contentx
Part 1: What is "Distance Education?"
What is "Regular and Substantive Interaction?" 1
Clock Hours and Credit Hours
Credit Hour 2
Contact Hours and Credit Hours at JSU
Contact Hours 4
Part 2: Applying the Definitions
Standard 1: Substantive Interaction 5
1. Providing Direct Instruction
2. Assess or Provide Student Feedback – Required Elements
Standard 2: Regular Interaction
Predictable and Scheduled
Standard 3: Monitor Student Academic Engagement and Success
Part 3: Engagement 11
What is "Engagement?"11
Behavioral Engagement11
Emotional Engagement11
Cognitive Engagement
Engaging with Students
Be Available
Be Friendly 13

Be Proactive	
Communicate Often	14
Personalize Your Course	14
Organize Your Content	15
Vary Course Assessments, Activities, and Resources	15
Create the Online Course Community	16
Why Should Instructors Care about Engagement?	16
One More Word on Engagement	16
Part 4: Course Design Workbook & Professional Development	17
Course Design Workbook	17
Workshops	17
Important Websites	
JSU Certified Online Instructor Course (COI)	
JSU Online Course Review Rubric	
Part 5: The Course Review Process	
Single Online Course Reviews	
Select a Course Review Option for a Single Course	
Select a Course Review Option for a Single Course The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview	
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview	20 22
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview 100% Online Program Reviews	
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview 100% Online Program Reviews Part 6: Evaluation & Surveys	20 22 23 23
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview 100% Online Program Reviews Part 6: Evaluation & Surveys The Mid-Term Survey	20 22 23 23
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview 100% Online Program Reviews Part 6: Evaluation & Surveys The Mid-Term Survey The End of Term Survey	20 22 23 23 23 23 23 24
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview 100% Online Program Reviews Part 6: Evaluation & Surveys The Mid-Term Survey The End of Term Survey Part 1: Teaching and Interaction	20 22 23 23 23 23 23 24 24 25
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview 100% Online Program Reviews Part 6: Evaluation & Surveys The Mid-Term Survey The End of Term Survey Part 1: Teaching and Interaction Part 2: Course Design	20 22 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 26
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview	20 22 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 26 27
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview	20 22 23 23 23 23 24 25 26 27 27
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview	20 22 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 26 27 27 27 27 27
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview	20 22 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 26 27 27 27 27 27 28
The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview	20 22 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 26 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 28 29

An Instructor's View of ReadyGO	
Communication in ReadyGO	
Commenting on Checklists	
Completing a Review in ReadyGO	
JSU Online Course Review Rubric/Instrument	
References	

Jacksonville State University Administration

Dr. Don Killingsworth, Jr. President, Jacksonville State University 224 Bibb Graves Hall 256-782-5278 donk@jsu.edu Dr. Staci Stone Vice Provost, Academic Affairs Provost & VPAA 203 Angle Hall 256-782-5616 slstone@jsu.edu

Dr. Christie Shelton Provost & Senior Vice President, Academic Affairs 235 Bibb Graves Hall 256-782-5540 cshelton@jsu.edu

Chris Casey	Christopher Inman, Ph.D.		
Director, Online@JSU	Assistant Professor of Education		
212 A Self Hall	Senior Instructional Designer		
256-782-5035	210 Self Hall		
ccasey@jsu.edu	256-782-5699		
	cinman@jsu.edu		
Shelena Cofield			
Learning Systems Applications	Bobby Mikel		
Administrator	Creative Media Designer		
207B Self Hall	206 Self Hall		
256-782-8138	256-782-5030		
sccofield@jsu.edu	bmikel@jsu.edu		
DeShannon Hulsey Online Learning Support Coordinator	Hungwei Tseng, Ph.D. Associate Professor of Education		
2012 Self Hall	Senior Instructional Designer		

2012 Self Hall 256-782-8172 jhulsey4@jsu.edu

256-782-8529 htseng@jsu.edu

212 Self Hall

Author(s)

Christopher Inman, Ph.D. Assistant Professor of Education / Senior Instructional Designer 210 Self Hall 256-782-5699 cinman@jsu.edu

For all questions and inquiries, please contact the Office of Online@JSU at <u>online@JSU.edu</u> or 256-782-8172.

Online Course Certification: An Introduction

With new federal education guidelines going into effect, and the demand for online course options increasing, Jacksonville State University is taking steps to make the development of highquality, engaging online courses and programs a priority to thrive in an increasingly competitive online environment.

Online@JSU, in cooperation with administrators at Jacksonville State University, has developed the Online Course Certification Program as a consistent, standardized process to create online courses and online programs. During this process, online courses and programs are certified through a comprehensive review process followed by relevant enhancements where needed and a process of ongoing evaluation. The program is designed to achieve the following goals:

- 1. Provide a university-wide, standardized process of developing online courses that leads to course certification
- 2. Comply with federal guidelines
- 3. Provide a framework to encourage faculty to use best practices and strategies when engaging with and teaching students in online courses/programs.
- 4. Collaborate with JSU faculty as subject matter experts
- 5. Create an apparatus for continuous course review and evaluation of effectiveness
- 6. Improve student satisfaction with online courses and programs at JSU
- 7. Increase student retention in online courses and programs at JSU
- 8. Create student enrollment and recruitment opportunities

Review and enhancement of courses is based on several aspects, including:

- Best practices in course design
- Best practices in course build
- Best practices in teaching online courses
- Local JSU requirements at either the top level, school level, departmental level, or program level
- Federal guidelines

During this process, JSU faculty are provided with resources and support from Online@JSU to help them prepare their courses for a successful course review and certification. Department

chairs play an instrumental role in encouraging faculty to complete the review process, as well as by assisting Online@JSU in scheduling and implementing a complete program review for 100% online programs at JSU. Other leaders will be involved where appropriate.

Developmental course shells within Canvas will be used to prepare courses for production, giving all stakeholders a chance to review and provide feedback before pushing to a production course before a term begins. Modifications to online courses, online teaching practices, or other aspects take place at that time. Course will be considered "certified" when all parties are satisfied with the condition of the course.

Criteria evaluated during this process include:

- Modern, functional home page
- Course learning outcomes and learning objectives
- Syllabus, policies, orientation materials
- Learning modules/ unit workflow/ organization
- Up-to-date content/resources
- Instructor engagement, regular and substantive interaction
- Varied assessment methods
- Direct instruction
- Accessibility
- Mobile compatibility

Online Course Certification: Characteristics of a Certified Course

At Jacksonville State University, completing a course review and certification process means that your online course has the following characteristics.

Reviewed & Certified

• The course is reviewed and certified using an adapted version of the Quality Matters Rubric and the OSCQR – SUNY Online Course Quality Review Rubric.

Supported by Policies, Standards, and Support Mechanisms

- All university, program, and course policies are included.
- The course syllabus is available and prominently displayed and includes all required components.
- Course orientation material acclimates students to the online course.
- Links and information to Student Success, the JSU Writing Center, the Houston Cole Library, 24/7 Online Tutoring, Disability Resources, and more are available to students within the online course.
- Technical requirements and technical support is present within the online course.

Engaged Instructors

- Instructor is present and active in the online course.
- Contact information, communication strategies, feedback policies, and communication tools are all prominently listed and organized to encourage the creation of an online course community
- Course activities and assignments encourage interaction between students, and between the student and the instructor
- Instructor is proactive in identifying struggling students and provides support and assistance.

Pedagogically Sound & Well Organized

- Learning outcomes and learning objectives are in alignment.
- Course design and build align with distance education guidelines as specified by the U.S. Department of Education.
- All assessments are in alignment with course learning outcomes and learning objectives.
- Course is organized in a logical, coherent format that optimizes the student ability to locate course content quickly and efficiently.
- Course homepage helps students successfully start the course,

• Canvas course Pages are aesthetically pleasing and well-organized.

Relevant Content

- Content is up to date, accessible, and mobile-friendly
- Content (resources) is varied, and includes text, graphic, and multimedia.
- External course publisher packages are activated correctly, include instructions and support information for students, and deploy content in a logical, coherent format to optimize the student ability to locate course content quickly and efficiently
- Assignments and discussions have clear, coherent directions, are well-organized, and include rubrics.
- Gradebook is organized and includes correctly weighted assignment groups (if weighted grading is used).
- Students should have real-time access to their grade average in each of their courses.

Part 1: What is "Distance Education?"

The U.S. Department of Education has provided the <u>following definition for "distance</u> education."

- 1. Instruction is delivered by one or more types of technology
- 2. Types of technologies include:
 - a. The Internet
 - b. Various Wired and Wireless Media
 - c. Audio Conferences
- 3. These technologies "support *regular and substantive interaction* between the students and the instructor or instructors, either synchronously or asynchronously" (Swartzwelder, 2020, p. 2)."

This new guidance from the U.S. Department of Education also provides clarity in defining the difference between "Correspondence Courses" and "Distance Education (Swartzwelder, 2020, p. 2)." Based upon this guidance, Online@JSU supports and endorses fully realized, engaging **distance education** courses at Jacksonville State University. Jacksonville State University does not use or support correspondence courses. **These new requirements took effect on July 1, 2021**.

What is "Regular and Substantive Interaction?"

Substantive Interaction

There is now increased flexibility to focus on learning over seat time when evaluating competency-based and distance education (NC-SARA, 2020).

"Substantive interaction" is defined as "engaging students in teaching, learning, and assessment, consistent with the content under discussion." It must include at least two of five components:

- 1. "Providing direct instruction";
- 2. "Assessing or providing feedback on a student's coursework";
- 3. Providing information or responding to questions about the content of a course or competency";
- 4. "Facilitating a group discussion regarding the content of a course or competency; or"
- 5. "Other instructional activities approved by the institution's or program's accrediting agency (Swartzwelder, 2020, p. 2)."

Regular Interaction

"Regular interaction" requires an institution to ensure, "prior to the student's completion of a course or competency," that there is "the opportunity for substantive interactions with the student on a predictable and scheduled basis commensurate with the length of time and the amount of content in the course or competency." The institution also is responsible for "[m]onitoring the student's academic engagement and success and ensuring that an instructor is responsible for promptly and proactively engaging in substantive interaction with the student when needed on the basis of such monitoring, or upon request by the student (Swartzwelder, 2020, p. 2-3)." "Academic engagement" can be fulfilled through virtual/ augmented reality activities (NC-SARA, 2020).

Clock Hours and Credit Hours

Clock Hour (Contact Hours)

A "clock hour" or "contact hour" is defined as 50-60 minutes of instruction or other specified academic activity within a 60-minute period. Institutions can calculate clock hours (contact hours) both for synchronous instruction where there is direct interaction between the students and the instructor and for an asynchronous academic engagement activity where the student interacts with technology that can monitor and document the amount of time the student participates in that activity (Swartzwelder, 2020, p. 3). In other words, "clock hour" now includes asynchronous as well as synchronous classes, lectures, or recitations with the opportunity for direct interaction between students and instructors (NC-SARA, 2020).

In all cases, the institution must be able to monitor the student's attendance in at least 50 minutes in each 60-minute clock hour and, for distance education programs, to comply with all state approval and accrediting agency requirements.

Credit Hour

A "credit hour" represents a period of student work that is defined by the institution in compliance with the requirements of its state approval and accrediting agencies. It must reasonably approximate either one hour of direct instruction and two hours of out-of-class work each week or an equivalent amount of work in other academic activities such as laboratory work and internships. The Department also concluded that institutions can "take into account a variety of delivery methods, measurements of student work, academic calendars, disciplines, and degree levels" when making credit calculation determinations. It bears noting, however, that many state approval and accrediting agencies maintain stricter or more prescriptive requirements for credit calculations (Swartzwelder, 2020, p. 3).

Contact Hours and Credit Hours at JSU

Jacksonville State University (JSU) defines a credit hour as 1 contact hour (60 minutes, direct instruction) and a minimum of two non-contact hours (out-of-class student work or study time) for a minimum of 3 hours of course activities per week for a typical semester of not less than 14 weeks. **Most classes at JSU are 3 credit hours per semester.** Therefore, the typical 14-week semester requires 42 contact hours and 84 non-contact hours per semester for a total of 126 hours per 3-hour class.

□ Contact hours = direct instruction

Non-contact hours = out-of-class-student work, study time, and homework
For classes offered in a shortened format, such as summer terms, the hours are prorated so that classes contain the same total number of contact hours and instructional activities as if the classes were scheduled for a full 14-week semester. See <u>Section 2.13 Credit Hours Awarded for Courses</u> in the Faculty Handbook for the full policy.

Table 1 shows the number of contact or direct instruction hours per week that are required based on the number of course credits and the length of the academic term.

Course	Contact	4-Week	6-Week	7-Week	14-Week
Credits	Hours	Term	Term	Term	Term
1	1	3.5	2.4	2.0	1.0
2	2	7.0	4.7	4.0	2.0
3	3	10.5	7.0	6.0	3.0
4	4	14.0	9.4	8.0	4.0

Table 1: Contact Hours per Week

Non-contact or out-of-class student work or study time per week is shown in Table 2.

Course	Non-Contact	4-Week	6-Week	7-Week	14-Week
Credits	Hours	Term	Term	Term	Term
1	2	7.0	4.8	4.0	2.0
2	4	14.0	9.4	8.0	4.0
3	6	21.0	14.0	12.0	6.0

	4	8	28.0	18.8	16.0	8.0
--	---	---	------	------	------	-----

Table 2: Non-Contact Hours per Week

Contact Hours

Contact hours quantify the amount of *regular and substantive interaction between students and their instructor* and are most traditionally associated with the number of hours that a class meets on campus. In some online formats (e.g., Synchronous class meetings using Teams), this can be interpreted as the number of hours of synchronous online instruction. However, in asynchronous online classes, which is the most common online delivery method at JSU, the general guideline is that an asynchronous online activity must (a) be required for all students, and (b) involve substantive and sustained interaction with the instructor to count as a functional equivalent of contact time.

Part 2: Applying the Definitions

In this section, the definitions outlined in Part 1 are applied to online teaching and online course design.

Standard 1: Substantive Interaction

Instructors *must* use at least two of the following five types of "substantive interaction":

- 1. Provide direct instruction.
- 2. Assess or provide feedback on a student's coursework.
- 3. Provide information or respond to questions about the content of a course or competency.
- 4. Facilitate a group discussion regarding the content of a course or competency.
- 5. Other instructional activities approved by the institution's or program's accrediting agency.

1. Providing Direct Instruction

- A. **Direct Instruction Defined.** Direct instruction is a teacher-centered (teacher-directed) instructional method in which instructors present information and provide explicit, guided instructions to students. There are six steps:
 - Introduce Material: briefly recap/review content learned in the previous lesson and introduce the current lesson.
 - (2) Present New Content: content is presented to students (step-by-step learning guides are optional)
 - (3) Guided Instruction for Students: instructors conduct demonstrations or model concepts; students are allowed to practice at this time; instructors can correct students at that time or re-teach concepts as needed.
 - (4) Provide Feedback: instructors give immediate feedback to students during the activity to give students an indicator of their performance
 - (5) Independent Practice: students individually apply the skills or concepts they have learned on their own or with peers.
 - (6) Evaluation: students are formally evaluated on their learning.

Note that not all steps in the direct instruction process must be completed in one class meeting. Different steps may be completed over the course of several meetings.

- B. Direct Instruction Synchronous Class Meetings. Direct instruction can be provided via scheduled, synchronous class meetings. If an instructor decides to schedule online, required class meetings, the following guidelines are *recommended:*
 - (1) Use Microsoft Teams to conduct the meeting.
 - (2) Schedule the online meeting well in advance so that students can adjust their schedule accordingly.
 - (3) Create a process for students who cannot attend the meeting due to work obligations or unplanned schedule interruptions.
 - (4) Provide supplemental material to students in Canvas well in advance of the meeting.
 - (5) Plan meeting follow-up activities, readings, or assignments well in advance of the meeting and organize them in Canvas.
- *C.* Direct Instruction Asynchronous: Direct instruction can also be delivered asynchronously with well-organized learning units/modules in Canvas. If you use asynchronous direct instruction, the following guidelines are *recommended:*
 - a. Synchronous, *required* virtual meetings *cannot* be a component of an asynchronous online course. Synchronous, virtual meetings can be included as a component of the course so long as students are not required to attend.
 - b. Use Canvas to organize learning units/modules
 - c. Organize content, activities, resources, and assignments using a logical, studentfriendly format.
 - d. Use lecture capture software to record video lectures and tutorials.
 - e. Upload all videos into Canvas Studio in your Canvas course and publish the videos in your course where appropriate.
 - i. Uploading videos into OneDrive or Stream and sharing the video into Canvas is also an option
 - ii. Uploading videos into YouTube and sharing the video into Canvas is also an option
 - iii. Other options include Google Drive, Dropbox, etc.
 - f. Communicate with students regularly.

It is important to remember that any type of interaction must be measurable according to the U.S. Department of Education.

D. Direct Instruction - Synchronous Class Meetings - Monitoring: Interaction can be

measured or monitored in Microsoft Teams via the following:

- (1) Direct observation of student participation, and/or
- (2) Downloading the student attendance, and/ or
- (3) Recording the session, and/or
- (4) Embedding polls, quizzes, or other interactive activities throughout a session, etc.
- E. Direct Instruction Asynchronous Monitoring: Interaction can be measured or

monitored in the following ways:

- (1) Canvas Studio Insights. (Each video tracks the student activity with the video.
- (2) Canvas Studio Comments. (Student comments are time-tagged.)
- (3) Canvas Studio videos can also be embedded within assignments, discussions, and pages to check student understanding of the content.
- (4) Canvas log-in (on the People page, instructors can determine the most recent instance of a student logging into Canvas)
- (5) Canvas Course Analytics
- (6) Assignment Submissions
- (7) Quizzes/Tests Completed
- (8) Discussion Participation
- (9) Assignment Feedback

2. Assess or Provide Student Feedback – Required Elements

It is *recommended* that instructors perform the following actions and activities:

- (1) Attach a Canvas Rubric to each assignment. (You may also use a rubric in Word or PDF format.)
- (2) Use the Canvas Rubric to guide grading and provide feedback.
- (3) Return feedback on assignments within 48 to 72 hours after the scheduled due date (unless the assignment is a major assignment such as multimedia projects, research papers, final semester projects, etc.). In such cases, allow for a two-week turnaround time for grading and feedback.
 - i. Each department should have a policy specific to turnaround time for their courses.
- (4) Provide feedback/ comments to students via Canvas SpeedGrader, text, audio, video, and/ or other relevant tools.

3. Provide Information or Respond to Questions about the Content of a Course or Competency – Required Elements

It is *recommended* that instructors do the following:

- Respond to student questions about coursework or assignments/ student email within 24 business hours, preferably sooner. (Exceptions can be made for holidays, weekends, and conferences.)
- (2) Use GEM 365 email, Canvas Inbox, Canvas Announcements, Flip (formerly FlipGrid, Canvas Discussion Boards, or Microsoft Teams to answer and respond to student questions.
 - i. This list is not intended to be comprehensive.
- (3) Create and cultivate avenues for students to ask instructors questions.

4. Facilitate a Group Discussion Regarding the Content of a Course or Competency – Required Elements

It is *recommended* that instructors do the following:

- a. Provide group discussion opportunities in planned, organized activities
 - i. Facilitating group discussions can be done synchronously by using webconferencing software/apps (Microsoft Teams) or Canvas Discussions or other tools
 - Facilitating group discussions can be done asynchronously by using Canvas Discussions, Flip, or another useful tool
- b. Keep track of student attendance (interaction); this can also be addressed using direct observation.
- c. Keep track of student participation by posts made or recordings submitted, etc.

5. Other Instructional Activities Approved by the Institution's or Program's Accrediting Agency – Required Elements

Other activities and experiences may be included and required. These experiences include, but are not limited to the following:

- Recitals
- Plays/Theatre
- Concerts
- Community Service
- University Sanctioned Events
- Student Organizations
- Professional Organizations

- Clinical Experiences
- Internships
- Other

Standard 2: Regular Interaction

The U.S. Department of Education has two requirements for determining regular interaction:

- 1. There is "the opportunity for substantive interactions with the student on a predictable and scheduled basis commensurate with the length of time and the amount of content in the course or competency."
- 2. The institution also is responsible for "[m]onitoring the student's academic engagement and success and ensuring that an instructor is responsible for promptly and proactively engaging in substantive interaction with the student when needed on the basis of such monitoring, or upon request by the student."

Predictable and Scheduled

It is *recommended* that instructors do the following:

- Synchronous class meetings via web-conferencing software/ apps should:
 - \circ Be scheduled well in advance.
 - Be intentional and planned as a normal part of the course
 - Be recorded and archived. (If the meeting is a lecture-style meeting.)
- Include meeting schedule in syllabus and course calendar.
- Record attendance. (If the meeting is a lecture-style meeting.)

Scheduled asynchronous class meeting duration should be commensurate with face-to-face class meeting duration. (Per meeting)

- Asynchronous class activities and delivery can be created and scheduled in advance using Modules within Canvas.
- Module/Topic dates and assignment due dates should be included in the course syllabus and course schedule/calendar
- Assignment due dates should be included in the assignment settings. *(Instructor's choice.)*
- Discussion due dates should be included in the discussion settings. (Instructor's choice.)
- Quiz due dates should be included in the quiz settings. (Instructor's choice.)

Standard 3: Monitor Student Academic Engagement and Success

It is *recommended* that instructors do the following:

- Proactively engage with students on an individual basis, where appropriate, to encourage students, provide feedback, provide instructional support, and solicit feedback and questions.
- Use Canvas course analytics to assess student activity/engagement in a course.
- Use the Canvas People page to determine that last time a student entered a course.
- Provide opportunities for groups of students to ask questions and provide feedback.
- Monitor student assignment submission dates are assignments submitted by the due date or not
- Monitor discussion board participation by students
- Monitor quiz completion by students
- Be open and available to students via email and office phone number
 - It is recommended that instructors be available via Microsoft Teams
 - \circ It is recommended that instructors schedule virtual office hours
 - Providing students with your cell phone is optional

* This is not intended to be an exhaustive list of tools or strategies.

Part 3: Engagement

In Part 1: "What is Distance Education?", we discussed how the U.S. Department of Education defines distance education. In Part 2: "Applying the Definitions," we reviewed how these definitions would be applied to distance education courses at Jacksonville State University. In this section, we will define engagement, how instructors can engage with their students, and provide Jacksonville State University's view on engagement in relation to online (distance) education.

What is "Engagement?"

Engagement, a somewhat nebulous term in the educational realm, can be difficult to quantify. For our purposes, we will follow the framework as explained by Fredricks, Blumenfeld, and Paris (2004) whereby they describe engagement as having three types: behavioral, emotional, and cognitive.

Behavioral Engagement

Behavioral engagement is characterized by three concepts or definitions:

- 1. Positive Conduct Following class rules and following class-norms
- 2. Effort, persistence, concentration, paying attention, and participating in class activities
- 3. Participating in university-related activities (Fredricks et al., 2004, 62)

Emotional Engagement

Emotional engagement refers to emotions related to the course, the school, the teacher, etc. It can be related to how well a student identifies with a school or program, as well as whether they feel valued by the school or program. Research findings in this area tend to overlap with motivational research concepts such as interest and value. Studies in motivation "distinguish between situational and personal interest (Fredricks, et al, 2004, 63)." Motivation derived from situational interests is usually temporary, whereas those derived from personal interest is relatively consistent.

Emotional engagement is also related to the concept of value. According to Eccles and Midgley (1989), value is comprised of four components:

- 1. Interest enjoyment of the activity
- 2. Attainment Value confirming self-worth by successfully completing a task well

- 3. Utility Value/Importance how the task impacts future goals
- Cost potential negative aspects experienced while completing a task (Fredricks et al, 2004, 63)

Cognitive Engagement

As stated by Fredricks et al (2004, 63), "research on cognitive engagement comes from the literature on school engagement, which stresses investment in learning, and from the literature on instruction, which involves self-regulation, or being strategic." A couple of questions come from this area of research:

- How psychologically invested is the student in learning? (This is connected to intrinsic motivation.)
- 2. How strategic, or self-regulated, are students in the learning process?

Self-regulation refers to whether a student uses metacognitive strategies when they complete a task, whether a student uses learning strategies to learn the material, and whether a student persists in learning material when faced with obstacles and distractions. A key distinction is also made between deep-level strategies employed by students and surface-level strategies. "Students who use deep strategies are more cognitively engaged; they exert more mental effort, create more connection among ideas, and achieve greater understanding of ideas (Weinstein & Mayer, 1986)."

Engaging with Students

Now that we have provided a few basic parameters as to how engagement can be defined, we will provide concrete strategies an instructor can employ to engage students in online courses.

Be Available

Instructors need to be available to students.

- Provide your preferred contact information (JSU GEM address, office number, cell phone number, Microsoft Teams info, etc.) to your students
 - Choose your preferred contact methods and be available using those methods
 - Providing a cell phone number to students may be too much for some instructors.
 If you are concerned about students having your number, one option is to create a
 Google Voice account to generate a phone number that students can use to

contact you. (You are not required to provide your cell phone number to students.)

- Provide time periods for students to contact you and be available during those time periods
- Expect student emergencies to occur, and be willing to adjust expectations to communicate with students

Be Friendly

Instructors should not typically be a student's friend, but they can be supportive and helpful. Some instructors grow concerned about being too "friendly" with students because they believe students will perceive them as a push-over or that students will misinterpret the nature of the instructor-student relationship. To assuage your concerns, please be assured that an instructor can be both firm and friendly. Friendly does not equal 'friend.' Keep your expectations high in terms of course decorum and assignment quality and follow the policies and guidelines as you have prescribed in the course syllabus. However, in your communications with students, use a friendly, warm tone. Do not be dismissive or terse. View every communication opportunity with a student or group of students as an opportunity to build and strengthen the instructor-student relationship. Doing so can often determine whether a student persists or disappears in an online course.

Be Proactive

As an instructor, you will always have students who struggle. Be proactive in identifying a struggling student and act. If a student struggles at the beginning of the course, contact them to remind them about course due dates and check on the condition of the student. Students are people, and sometimes things happen that simply cannot be predicted. Offer to meet with a student online via Microsoft Teams or Zoom, or through a phone call. Provide the proper information and support to the student if the student confides in you. There are several student support units at JSU that are prepared and willing to assist students. How do you know whether a student is struggling? Ask yourself these questions.

- Use the Canvas People page to see the last time a student has logged into Canvas. Has the student logged in recently?
- Is the student submitting assignments on time?
- Has the quality of a student's work suddenly dropped?

- Is the student participating in class discussions?
- Is the quality of class discussion participation of high quality? Has the quality dropped?
- Are test scores high or low? Are students consistently performing poorly on the same questions or concepts?

Once you answer those questions, you can act and provide the proper support to your students. Support options may include:

- Student Success
- JSU Writing Center
- Disability Resources
- Financial Aid
- RMC/JSU Student Health Center
- Student Affairs
- Online@JSU (Canvas, Turnitin, Honorlock, Canvas Studio)
- Technology Support Center (IT Help Desk GEM and MyJSU)
- Other

Communicate Often

Communicate often with your students. Do not disappear in the online course.

- Schedule pre-planned course announcements in Canvas that will be sent out on preassigned dates throughout the course. Send one announcement weekly to remind them of upcoming course activities and due dates.
- Provide individualized feedback on assignment submissions and discussions
- If you observe certain patterns in student assignment submissions, send a course announcement to address the concern, issue, or pattern. Provide additional assignment support and examples if needed.
- Schedule optional Microsoft Teams or Zoom meetings with your students.

Personalize Your Course

Where possible, imprint your personality on the course.

- Include a personalized welcome message in the course, and send a personalized announcement that welcomes students to the course
- Include a profile picture of yourself

- Convey your own personality in communications with students, but be professional
- Use your own personal style when you create lecture capture videos, introduction videos, and tutorial videos

Organize Your Content

Disorganized course content sends the wrong message to students, and the message is that you do not care about the course or about whether your students succeed or fail. Organize your course content into consistent learning units on the Canvas Modules page. Where possible, use the same organizational pattern or style in each learning unit.

Vary Course Assessments, Activities, and Resources

Some academic fields lend themselves to repetition of activities and assessments within an online course, and the repetition, at times, cannot be avoided. As an instructor who is an expert within the field, however, you must decide whether assessment repetition is unavoidable or whether you are being resistant to change. If you are being resistant to change, please consider your student's needs as learners and adjust accordingly. For example, some courses at JSU have been observed as following this instructional pattern:

- 1. Read the textbook chapters.
- 2. Answer the textbook chapter questions at the end of the chapter(s).
- 3. Submit the Word document with the chapter question answers provided.
- 4. Take the quiz or test.

If you were an online student, do you feel that you would be challenged and engaged?

- Resources = textbook
- Activities = read textbook chapters and answer the textbook questions
- Assessments = chapter question submission and quiz

Certainly, there are courses that should follow this pattern due to various pedagogical reasons. However, it is also true that many courses and fields have a variety of instructional and pedagogical opportunities available to them. Consider incorporating assessments and activities such as case studies, individual projects, group collaboration activities, problem-solving exercises, etc. Assessments that allow students to practice what they have learned in authentic, real-world contexts achieve significant impact on student learning. Consider incorporating different types of resources such as short lecture capture videos that you record, TED Talks, peer-reviewed articles, websites, guest speakers, infographics, and images.

Create the Online Course Community

Creating a healthy online course community, or course culture, within an online course presents challenges unique to the online environment. Instructors in face-to-face or hybrid learning modalities see students in real-time. Students can ask instructors questions immediately, participate in class discussions or group projects, see an instructor's facial expressions, and listen to the tone of an instructor's voice. These characteristics combined with course policies and direct instructor contact help to create a course community. These opportunities are not so readily available in online courses, and steps must be consciously taken to create the online course community. How do you do it? You create the online course community by...

- Being Available
- Being Friendly
- Being Proactive
- Communicating Often
- Personalizing Your Course
- Organizing Your Content
- Providing Engaging Content, Activities, and Assessments

Why Should Instructors Care about Engagement?

Why should instructors care about engagement? The answer is straight-forward: the most important factor in student persistence and success in online courses is you, the instructor. The more present and engaged the instructor, the greater the probability that students will persist through challenging course content, personal difficulties, and unplanned events.

One More Word on Engagement

A hallmark of successful online courses is engagement, and more specifically, instructor presence. You, the instructor, are a vital part of student success in online courses. You can be the difference.

Part 4: Course Design Workbook & Professional Development

Course Design Workbook

Online@JSU has developed a course design workbook to assist faculty in preparing their online course(s) for a successful course review.

Access the JSU Online Course Certification Program page to access and download the Course Design Workbook.

Components of the Course Design Workbook:

- 1. Step 1 Learning Objectives
- 2. Step 2 Assessments & Learning Activities
- 3. Step 3 Regular & Substantive Interaction (RSI)
- 4. Step 4 Creating a Course Map
- 5. Step 5 Course Development & Review Options
- 6. Appendix
 - a. Worksheets
 - b. Worksheet Samples
 - c. Course Review Rubric
 - d. More Resources

Workshops

Professional development workshops are provided by Faculty Commons and Online@JSU each Fall and Spring semester. As part of the workshop schedule, some workshops specifically designated and designed to support faculty in preparing online courses for course certification review will be scheduled each Fall and Spring semester. These workshops will primarily occur online through Microsoft Teams.

Workshops will include topics such as:

- 1. Writing course and module/unit learning objectives
- 2. Aligning assessments and activities
- 3. Infusing online courses with opportunities for regular and substantive interaction
- 4. Mapping or outlining a course

- 5. Best practices in course design
- 6. Best practices in teaching online
- 7. Building in Canvas
- 8. Leveraging apps and tools to teach online
- 9. Media in online courses
- 10. Accessibility

Important Websites

Access Online@JSU's Workshop Schedule

Access Faculty Common's Workshop Schedule

JSU Certified Online Instructor Course (COI)

The Certified Online Instructor Course (COI) is offered once every Fall, Spring, and Summer semester. Faculty and staff are welcome to register and complete the COI at a time that is convenient for the instructor.

The COI is comprised of three parts:

- 3. Teaching Online
- 4. Course Design
- 5. Course Building

Components from the Course Design Workbook are incorporated into the COI. To pass the

COI, instructors must submit an online course for review and successfully pass the online course review.

JSU Online Course Review Rubric

The JSU Online Course Review Rubric is used to assess course submissions. This instrument has been derived from the Quality Matters (QM) Higher Education Rubric and the SUNY Online Course Quality Review Rubric (OSCQR).

Part 5: The Course Review Process

The course review process is outlined for the purposes of clarity and transparency. Each course and program review are tailored to the needs of faculty and the online courses. There are two review processes for online courses at JSU.

- 1. Single Online Course Reviews
 - a. (for online courses not part of a 100% online program)
- 2. 100% Online Program Reviews

Single Online Course Reviews

Initiating a Course Review for Single Online Courses

As an instructor at Jacksonville State University, there are two online course certification options available for courses that are not part of a 100%-online program.

Select the option that is best for you.

- 1. **Option 1: Submit an Online Course for Immediate Review for Certification** By selecting this option, an instructor is opting to do the following **BEFORE** submitting a course for review:
 - a. Review the Course Design Workbook & Certification Rubric.
 - b. Make all reasonable efforts to prepare the course for review prior to submission.
 - c. By selecting this option, an instructor may use the Course Design Workbook & Certification Rubric during these activities:
 - i. Work alone to prepare an online course for review and certification
 - ii. Work with a partner or small group to prepare an online course for review and certification
 - iii. Attend optional workshops provided by Online@JSU and Faculty Commons to prepare an online course for review and certification
 - iv. Consult with instructional designers from Online@JSU to answer any questions

d. Note: Please address all areas outlined in the certification rubric prior to submission for review.

- 2. Option 2: Online Course Development & Review for Certification By selecting this option, one of the three situations is present:
 - a. An instructor is interested in redesigning an existing online course, or

- b. An instructor expects a significant amount of redesigning and rebuilding of an existing online course, or
- c. An instructor is creating a new online course.
 - This option also includes completion of the newly redesigned Certified Online Instructor Course (COI). Completing the COI is not a mandatory part of the process – it is merely an option available to instructors.

Select a Course Review Option for a Single Course

Choose the option of your choice by completing and submitting this form to initiate the process: https://forms.office.com/r/pAqwdZqWvi

You may also scan this QR code to access the form.



The Review Process for Single Online Courses: An Overview

Selecting Option 1: After selecting option one, an instructor takes all reasonable steps to prepare an online course to pass a certification review successfully. All faculty have access to the <u>JSU</u> <u>Online Course Review Rubric</u>. The rubric is linked within the Course Design Workbook and can also be found at jsu.edu/online. Faculty will use the rubric to assist them in preparing their online course, and instructional designers will use this instrument to determine whether a course is certified.

Overview of the Process

- 1. **Contact:** After an instructor selects option 1, an instructional designer from Online@JSU will contact the instructor to discuss the process.
- 2. **ReadyGO:** ReadyGO is course development organizational tool that integrates with Canvas. Once a review process begins, the instructor's course(s) will be uploaded into ReadyGO. Using ReadyGO, the instructional designer will send several checklists to the instructor so that they may perform course self-checks before they submit a course for final review.
- 3. **ReadyGO Instructor View:** Once a course is added to ReadyGO, the instructor will see a navigation menu link in their Canvas course called "ReadyGO View."
 - a. During the review, communication between instructor and instructional designer takes place within the ReadyGO view panel.

- Instructors will be able to access all review checklists in the ReadyGO panel. Instructors will also be able to leave comments for instructional designers and vice versa.
- 5. Instructional designers will use the course review rubric to assess the online course submission and provided feedback.
- 6. Instructors will be asked to respond to the feedback and make any necessary adjustments requested by instructional designers.
 - a. If significant changes to a course are needed, instructional designers will create a course development Canvas shell and all changes and updates will occur within the development shell.
- 7. A course must meet all objectives as outlined in the course review rubric to pass a review.

Selecting Option 2: The review process for option 2 differs from option 1 in that there is more time dedicated to collaboratively designing and building an online course. Again the <u>JSU Online</u> Course Review Rubric is used to determine whether an online course is certified.

Overview of the Process

- 1. **Contact:** After an instructor selects option 2, an instructional designer contacts the instructor and then meets with the instructor.
- 2. Initial Meeting: At the initial meeting, the instructor and the instructional designer discuss the course, the course learning objectives and course goals and discuss what the instructor wants to achieve. Based on this discussion, a project completion timeline is created. The timeline will include benchmarks to complete specific parts of the process.
- 3. **ReadyGO and ReadyGO Instructor View:** As in option 1, ReadyGo will be used to facilitate the course development and review process.
- 4. **Course Development:** Development of the new course will take place within a course development shell in Canvas.
- 5. **Subject Matter Expert (SME):** During the process, instructors will serve as subject matter experts. The SME and the instructional designer will partner to develop the course until all objectives in the course review rubric are met.
- 6. Once complete, the course is certified.

100% Online Program Reviews

100%, fully online programs at Jacksonville State University live on a rotating course review and certification schedule. During a program's review period, the program leaders (deans, department chairs, program coordinators, etc.) and instructional designers agree upon a course review schedule/timeline and instructional designers (IDs) review each online course within the program and work with instructors to revise, or develop, courses if needed. At that time, IDs also offer services such as course building, template building, and more assistance as needed. (Instructors cannot sign up for this option. This process begins at the department level.)

Start an Online Program Review

You may also scan the QR code to start an online program review.



Part 6: Evaluation & Surveys

Students in online courses that have been reviewed course will receive anonymous surveys to complete **during the academic year following the course review.** The surveys will be delivered to students via Watermark Course Surveys & Evaluations (formerly EvaluationKIT). Watermark Course Surveys & Evaluations is referred to as "CES."

There are two surveys:

- 1. Mid-Term Survey
- 2. End of Term Survey

The Mid-Term Survey

The mid-term survey is intended to touch base with students to understand how they are feeling about the course and what they are thinking. At that time, students can give their opinion about course assignments, course design, teaching, etc. With this information, instructors can begin to adjust during the course and instructional designers can begin to map out course design changes for future offerings of the course.

There are four open-ended survey questions:

- 1. What is going well in this course?
- 2. What could be going better in this course?
- 3. What can students do to improve the course?
- 4. What can the instructor do to improve the course?

The End of Term Survey

The end of term survey is intended to measure student opinion about two areas of interest following the course's review, redesign (if applicable), and certification:

- 1. Part 1: Teaching and Interaction
- 2. Part 2: Course Design

Please Note: The End of Term survey will be issued in addition to the regularly scheduled endof-semester instructor/course evaluation survey sent to JSU students at the conclusion of each academic semester. Students will only receive this survey during the academic year following the review and certification of the course.

Part 1: Teaching and Interaction

In Teaching and Interaction, there are thirteen Likert-type questions and one open-ended question. The Likert-type questions ask students their opinion about specific information related to teaching practices, teaching strategies, and instructor presence.

The Likert Scale

5	=	All the time
4	=	A majority of the time
3	=	About half the time
2	=	Sometimes
1	=	Never
0	=	Not Applicable

Teaching and Interaction Likert-type Questions

- 1. My instructor(s) responded to email within a reasonable amount of time.
- 2. My instructor(s) answered student questions about content and assignments within a reasonable amount of time.
- 3. My instructor(s) graded assignments and provided feedback on assignments within a reasonable amount of time.
- 4. My instructor(s) was friendly and professional when communicating with me and my classmates.
- 5. My instructor(s) provided opportunities for communication and/or collaboration between students.
- My instructor(s) used a variety of course materials to support teaching and learning. (Examples may include lecture videos, tutorial videos, guest speakers, texts, articles, websites, PowerPoint presentations, handbooks, manuals, games, etc.)
- My instructor(s) used asynchronous teaching strategies effectively in my course. (For example, the course was organized in modules, and all content, resources, and assignments were available to you as you progressed in the course.)
- My instructor(s) used synchronous teaching strategies effectively in my course. (For example, synchronous class meetings, question and answer sessions, group discussions, etc. were required and used effectively via Microsoft Teams, Zoom, or another video conferencing tool.)
- 9. My instructor(s) displayed mastery of the content being taught and was always prepared.

- 10. My instructor(s) held consistent office hours and was always available during those stated times.
- 11. I believe that my instructor(s) was interested in my success in the course and held high expectations for my success.
- 12. Synchronous class meetings were scheduled in advance and included in the course calendar/ schedule.
- 13. Assignments, discussions, and quizzes/tests had due dates attached to them.

Teaching and Interaction Open-Ended Question

1. Do you have any professional or constructive comments about the teaching and learner interaction in this course? (If none, type "N/A".)

Part 2: Course Design

In Course Design, there are thirteen Likert-type questions and one open-ended question. The Likert-type questions ask students their opinions about the course organization and the course design.

The Likert Scale

- 5 =All the time
- 4 = A majority of the time
- 3 = About half the time
- 2 = Sometimes
- 1 = Never
- 0 = Not Applicable

Course Design Liker-type Questions

- 1. Directions about how the course is organized and how to navigate the course were available.
- 2. Policies about when to expect assignment feedback and a grade, how to participate in online discussions, and netiquette were available and easy to locate.
- 3. An introduction from the instructor that welcomed me to the course was present in the course.
- 4. Course learning outcomes and module learning objectives were listed in the course.
- 5. Grading guidelines and/or rubrics were included for all assignments, discussions, projects, and quizzes/tests, and I knew exactly how my work was being assessed.

- 6. At any point in the course, I either knew how to access my grade average or I knew how to calculate my grade average.
- 7. The relationship between instructional materials (textbooks, articles, ppts, lecture videos, etc.) and assignments (assignments, discussions, tests, quizzes) made sense to me.
- 8. The course provided opportunities for regular interaction between the instructor and students.
- 9. The course assignments and activities allowed me to use higher order thinking skills, critical thinking skills, and problem-solving skills.
- 10. The course layout was consistent and easy to navigate.
- 11. The course was free of grammatical and spelling errors.
- 12. Course technology was easy to use. (For example, Canvas, Canvas Studio, Turnitin, Teams, Honorlock, FlipGrid, etc.)
- 13. The course content was mobile compatible. (For example, you could easily see content and assignments on your mobile devices.)

Course Design Open-Ended Question

 Do you have any professional or constructive comments about the design of the course? (If none, type "N/A").

Survey Results

All survey feedback derived from the end of term survey will be used by instructors, department chairs, and instructional designers to adjust or improve course instruction or course design. Survey responses will only be available to those instructors who have been assessed by the survey, the associated department chair, and instructional designers with Online@JSU.

Department chairs, in consultation with faculty, may also share survey responses with school deans. Instructional designers with Online@JSU will not play a role in this decision and they will not share the data with any outside parties.

Survey responses will be stored in Watermark Course Evaluations & Surveys. Instructors can retrieve their results as soon as they become available. Department chairs will also be able to access all survey results for all faculty within their department.

Please note that survey results received from students are intended to be leveraged as a tool to assist in the continuous course improvement process.
Part 7: Course Certification

Course certification is a continuous process, or cycle, with a singular goal of continuous improvement.

Course Review

During the course review, instructional designers will review the course using the <u>JSU Online Course</u> Review Rubric.

The JSU Online Course Review Rubric consists of the following evaluation sections:

- 1. Course Overview and Introduction
- 2. Learning Objectives
- 3. Assessment and Measurement
- 4. Instructional Materials

- 5. Learning Activities and Learner Interaction
- 6. Design and Layout
- 7. Course Technology
- 8. Accessibility and Mobile Compatibility

During the review process, objectives within each section will be evaluated for level of completeness. The following scale will be applied to each objective within each section:

- Sufficiently Present = 3 points
- Minor Revision = 2 points
- Moderate Revision = 1 point
- Major Revision = 0 points
- Not Applicable = 3 points

Certification

To pass a review and earn certification, an online course must earn a level of "sufficiently present" for almost all objectives. A total of 134/168 points must be earned. Table 3 provides the points possible per section and the total possible points earned.

Section	Points Possible	Points Earned
1. Course Overview and Introduction	33	/ 33
2. Learning Objectives	15	/ 15
3. Assessment and Measurement	18	/ 18
4. Instructional Materials	18	/ 18
5. Learning Activities and Learner Interaction	24	/ 24
6. Design and Layout	24	/ 24
7. Course Technology	9	/ 9
8. Accessibility and Mobile Compatibility	27	/ 27
TOTAL	168	/ 168

Table 3: Course Certification - Points Available per Section

Certification Rating Scale

- Certified "Exemplary" = 151 to 168 points earned (90 to 100%)
- Certified "Accomplished" = 134 to 150 points earned (80 to 89%)
- Making Progress = 117 to 133 points earned (70 to 79%)
- Incomplete = 0 to 116 points earned (0 to 69%)

Certified Exemplary	 Critical course components work together and are aligned with <i>all (or almost all)</i> specific review standards to ensure that students achieve the desired learning outcomes. Demonstrates a <i>sophisticated understanding</i> of instructional pedagogies that are appropriate for the online environment and <i>incorporates effective</i> teaching strategies in course designs to meet the multiple learning needs of students. <i>Effectively uses and manage</i>s appropriate educational technologies to integrate with learning activity designs and go even further to enhance student engagement in the online learning environment.
Certified Accomplished	 Critical course components work together and are aligned with <i>most</i> of the specific review standards to support student success in online learning. Demonstrates <i>adequate understanding</i> of instructional pedagogies that are appropriate for the online environment and <i>incorporates some</i> of the teaching strategies in course designs that align with students preferred individualized learning style. <i>Uses adequate</i> educational technologies to integrate with learning activity designs that facilitate students learning.
Making Promise	 Many critical course components are missing or present to a degree that does not adequately support student learning in the online context; some of the specific review standards are met. Demonstrates partial understanding of instructional pedagogies that are appropriate for the online environment and incorporates some of the teaching strategies in course designs. Uses limited educational technologies to integrate with learning activity designs that facilitate students learning.

Incomplete	that students cannot make decision and are not in control of their learning; only a few of the specific review standards are met. Shows <i>minimal</i> awareness of instructional pedagogies that are important for online learning environment and incorporates limited teaching strategies in course designs.
------------	---

Table 4: Interpreting the Rating Scale

Certification Lifespan

A course certification is active for three (3) full academic years following successful review and certification. A number of factors, however, could cause a course review and certification process to occur prior to the end of the three-year lifespan. Among these factors include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Survey feedback from students
- Upcoming program accreditation
- Upcoming SACSCOC accreditation
- New online program development
- Full online program review request
- New online course instructor
- Influx of new online faculty throughout an online program

A dean, department chair, or instructor may request an online course review at any time.

Appendix

ReadyGO

ReadyGO is a course development organizational tool designed to assist instructional designers in tacking a course's development and review process. ReadyGO integrates with Canvas.

An Instructor's View of ReadyGO

1.	When a course development or review process begins, the Canvas course is imported into ReadyGO. Once this import occurs, the instructor will see the "ReadyGO View" link in the course navigation menu [1].
2.	Clicking on the "ReadyGO View" link will load the instructor view page. On the left side of the page, instructors will see course alerts [1], course details [2], and instructional designers [3].
3.	The course alerts area indicates actions that are currently open for instructors to complete. The course details area

includes information **Course Details** such as the course name, the status of the Name: Demo Prof Course 3_CI development or review Status: # Pending process, and more. [See SIS ID: the image to the right.] Development Deadline: 2022-12-30 The instructional Start Date: designer's area lists the instructional designer Students: 5 assigned to the review Instructors: Christopher Inman | cinman@jsu.edu or development process. Instructional Designers 4. On the right side of the page, the instructor will Chat 🚺 Checklists 2 see the "Chat" [1] area and the "Checklists" area [2]. All communication between the instructional 9 = - = designer and instructor occurs in the chat box. Checklists will provide a list of checklists in which instructors are expected to complete. Table 5: An Instructor's View of ReadyGO

Communication in ReadyGO

Messages from an instructional designer will appear in blue in the Chat area [1]. Responses from the instructor will appear in grey in the Chat area [2].

Chat	Checklists	
Christopher Inman 9/12/22 12:01pm Take a look at your syllabus checklist. I left some com	ments and reminders for you!	
Christopher Inman 9/12/22 12:01pm Take a look at your syllabus checklist. I left some comments	and reminders for you!	
Christopher Inman 9/12/22 12:03pm This is just another friendly reminder to look at the co	omments I left for you with your syllabus. Please make the corrections by tomorrow a	it 5:00 pm. Thanks!
2 12:04pm 2	,,	
hristopher. I'll take a look and make those changes.		_
li≡ ~ i≡ ~		
nessage here.		Save

When instructors send a message to instructional designer in ReadyGO, the instructional designer will receive the message in their GEM Office 365 email inbox. (See next image.)

ReadyGO Notifications] Demo Prof Course 3_CI	
ReadyGO Notifications <notifications@cidilabs.com> Te: Chris Inman</notifications@cidilabs.com>	
You don't often get email from notifications@cidilabs.com. Learn why this is important	
e course Demo Prof Course 3_CI has a new chat message in ReadyGO.	
Chris Inman	
Thanks, Christopher. I'll take a look and make those changes.	
	View Chat in Canvas

Commenting on Checklists

- Instructional designers will leave comments and feedback on the checklists in ReadyGo. When this occurs, the checklist item's checkbox will be highlighted in blue, and the box will be checked with a checkmark. (See image to the right.)
- 2. Instructors can view comments left by the instructional designer by clicking on the checklist

Chat	Checklists
Syllabus - General	
✓ ► Course Title	
Semester/Year	
Course Description	
Course Credit Hours	
Prerequisites	
→ Faculty/Instructor Contact Information	
Communication Policy	
▶ Required Textbooks/Materials	
Course (Student) Learning Outcomes/Goals	
Method of Course Delivery	
I Grading/Evaluation Scheme	

item's name, and then by clicking on the "Comments" tab. (See image below.)

Details	Comments 🗻	History	
		re included in your syllabus does not match the assignments you've created in your course which one is accurate? Take a look at this and	Christopher Inm 9/12/20
resolve.	Thanks!		

- 3. Instructors should make any recommended changes and then leave a comment in the comment box. The instructional designer will receive the comment and uncheck the item in the admin panel.
- 4. The next time an instructor goes to the Checklist area in ReadyGo, the completed item will no longer be checked.

Completing a Review in ReadyGO

Once a review is complete and the course has successfully passed the review, the course has earned certification. In ReadyGO, the instructional designer will mark the course as "Ready."

The instructor will see that the course is "Ready" by taking the following steps:

- 1. Click on "ReadyGO View" in the course navigation menu in their Canvas course.
- 2. Click on "Course Details."
- The instructor will see "Ready" in green text along with a checkmark beside it next to "Status." (See next image).

Course	e Alerts	
Course	e Details	
	Name:	Demo Prof Course 3_CI
(Status:	✓ Ready
	SIS ID:	
	Development Deadline:	2022-12-30
	Start Date:	
	Students:	5
	Instructors:	Christopher Inman cinman@jsu.edu
Instruc	ctional Desig	anore:

JSU Online Course Review Rubric/Instrument

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	Instructions make clear how to get started and	Choose an		
	where to find various course components.	item.		
	(Orientation/Get Started/Start Here content is			
	available.)			
2	Learners are introduced to the purpose and	Choose an		
	structure of the course.	item.		
3	Communication expectations for online	Choose an		
	discussions, email, and other forms of interaction	item.		
	are clearly stated.			
	• Substantive Interaction: Assess or			
	provide feedback on student's			
	coursework			
	• Regular Interaction			
4	Course and institutional policies with which the	Choose an	Available in	
	learner is expected to comply are clearly stated	item.	Orientation &	
	within the course, or a link to current policies is		Student Support	
	provided.		Module	
5	Minimum technology requirements for the	Choose an	Available in	
	course are clearly stated, and information on how	item.	Orientation &	
	to obtain the technologies is provided.		Student Support	
			Module	
6	Expectations for prerequisite knowledge in the	Choose an		
	discipline and/ or any required competencies are	item.		
	clearly stated.			
7	The self-introduction by the instructor is	Choose an		
	professional and is available online.	item.		
8	Learners are asked to introduce themselves to	Choose an		
	the class.	item.		
9	A printable syllabus and course calendar is	Choose an		
	available.	item.		
10	Course information states the course delivery	Choose an		
	format: face-to-face, hybrid, online-synchronous,	item.		
	or online-asynchronous.			

Section 1: Course Overview and Introduction

11	Information or links to learner support services	Choose an	Available in	
	are available. (Tutoring, student services,	item.	Orientation &	
	academic services, writing center, etc.		Student Support	
			Module	
Total Score for Section 1: Course Overview and Introduction				/33

Table 6: Section 1 - Course Overview and Introduction

Section 2: Learning Objectives

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	The course learning objectives, or	Choose		
	course/program competencies, describe	an item.		
	measurable outcomes.			
2	The module/unit-level learning objectives or	Choose		
	competencies describe outcomes that are	an item.		
	measurable and consistent with the course-level			
	objectives or competencies.			
3	Learning objectives or competencies are stated	Choose		
	clearly, are written from the learner's perspective,	an item.		
	and are prominently located in the course.			
4	The relationship between learning objectives or	Choose		
	competencies and learning activities is clearly	an item.		
	stated.			
5	The learning objectives or competencies are	Choose		
	suited to the level of the course.	an item.		
Γota	l Score for Section 2: Learning Objectives	· ·		/15

Table 7 - Section 2: Learning Objectives

Section 3: Assessment and Measurement

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	The assessments measure the achievement of the	Choose an		
	stated learning objectives or competencies.	item.		
2	The course grading policy is stated clearly at the	Choose an		
	beginning of the course.	item.		
3	Specific and descriptive criteria are provided for the	Choose an		
	evaluation of learners' work, and their connection to	item.		
	the course grading policy is clearly explained. (Rubrics,			
	grading schema, and exemplary work samples are			
	provided where appropriate.)			

4	The assessments used are sequenced, varied, and	Choose an		
	suited to the level of the course	item.		
5	The course provides learners with multiple	Choose an		
	opportunities to track their learning progress with	item.		
	timely feedback.			
6	Learners have easy access to a well-designed and up-to-	Choose an		
	date gradebook.	item.		
Tota	Total Score for Section 3: Assessment and Measurement			/18

Table 8 - Section 3: Assessment and Measurement

Section 4: Instructional Materials

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	The instructional materials contribute to the	Choose an		
	achievement of the stated learning objectives or	item.		
	competencies.			
2	The relationship between the use of instructional	Choose an		
	materials in the course and completing learning activities	item.		
	is clearly explained.			
3	The course models the academic integrity expected of	Choose an		
	learners by providing both source references and	item.		
	permissions for use of instructional materials			
4	The instructional materials represent up-to-date theory	Choose an		
	and practice in the discipline.	item.		
5	Course offers access to a variety of engaging resources	Choose an		
	that facilitate communication and collaboration, deliver	item.		
	content, and support learning and engagement.			
	• Substantive Interaction: Facilitate a group			
	discussion regarding the content of a course or			
	competency.			
6	Course materials and resources include copyright and	Choose an		
	licensing status where applicable	item.		
Total	Score for Section 4: Instructional Materials			/18

Table 9 - Section 4: Instructional Materials

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	The learning activities promote the achievement of the	Choose		
	stated learning objectives or competencies.	an item.		
2	Learning activities provide opportunities for interaction	Choose		
	that support active learning.	an item.		
	• Substantive Interaction: Provide direct			
	instruction			
3	Course offers opportunities for learner-to-learner	Choose		
	interaction and constructive collaboration.	an item.		
4	The instructor's plan for interacting with learners	Choose		
	during the course is clearly stated.	an item.		
	• Substantive Interaction: Provide information or			
	respond to questions about the content of a			
	course or competency.			
5	Learners have an opportunity to get to know the	Choose		
	instructor.	an item.		
	• Regular Interaction			
6	The requirements for learner interaction are clearly	Choose		
	stated.	an item.		
7	Course provides activities for learners to develop higher	Choose		
	order thinking and problem-solving skills, such as	an item.		
	critical reflection and analysis.			
	• Substantive Interaction: Provide direct			
	instruction			
	• Regular Interaction			
8	Course provides activities that emulate real world	Choose		
	applications of the discipline, such as experiential	an item.		
	learning, case studies, and problem-based activities.			
	• Substantive Interaction: Provide direct			
	instruction			
	• Regular Interaction			

Section 5: Learning Activities and Learner Interaction

Table 10 - Section 5: Learning Activities and Learner Interaction

Section 6: Design and Layout

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	The course homepage is functional and well-	Choose an		
	organized.	item.		

2	Large blocks of information are divided into	Choose an	
	manageable sections with ample white space around	item.	
	and between the blocks.		
3	There is enough contrast between text and	Choose an	
	background for the content to be easily viewed.	item.	
4	Instructions are provided and well written.	Choose an	
		item.	
5	Text is formatted with titles, headings, and other	Choose an	
	styles to enhance readability and improve the	item.	
	structure of the document.		
6	Font size is consistent within each page and across	Choose an	
	pages.	item.	
7	Canvas Pages are used where appropriate rather	Choose an	
	than direct uploads of files (PDFs, WORD	item.	
	documents, PPT, etc.)		
8	Video and audio material are chunked into easily	Choose an	
	digestible chunks no longer than 15 to 20 minutes	item.	
	in length.		
Tota	l Score for Section 6: Design and Layout		/24

Table 11 - Section 6: Design and Layout

Section 7: Course Technology

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	The tools used in the course support the learning	Choose an		
	objectives or competencies.	item.		
2	Course tools promote learner engagement and active	Choose an		
	learning.	item.		
3	The course provides learners with information on	Choose an	Available in	
	protecting their data and privacy.	item.	Orientation &	
			Student Support	
			Module	
Tota	l Score for Section 7: Course Technology			/9

Table 12 - Section 7: Course Technology

Section 8: Accessibility and Mobile Compatibility

Obj.	Standard	Condition	Notes/Comments	Score
1	Course navigation facilitates ease of use.	Choose an		
		item.		
2	The course design facilitates readability.	Choose an		

		item.	
3	The course provides alternative means of access to	Choose an	
	multimedia content in formats that meet the needs of	item.	
	diverse learners.		
4	Course multimedia facilitate ease of use.	Choose an	
		item.	
5	Hyperlink text is descriptive and makes sense when out	Choose an	
	of context (avoid using "click here").	item.	
6	The use of blue text or underlined text to signify	Choose an	
	importance of textual content is avoided.	item.	
7	All content is mobile compatible.	Choose an	
		item.	
8	Videos are captioned.	Choose an	
		item.	
9	Images are given proper alt-text or designated as	Choose an	
	"decorative"	item.	
Total	Score for Section 8: Accessibility and Mobile Compatibilit	у	/27

Table 13 - Section 8: Accessibility and Mobile Compatibility

Totals Table

Section 1	/33
Section 2	/15
Section 3	/18
Section 4	/18
Section 5	/24
Section 6	/24
Section 7	/9
Section 8	/27
Total	/168

Table 14 - Totals Table

Rating Scale

- 151 168 = Certified "Exemplary"
- 134 150 = Certified "Accomplished"
- 117-133 = Making Progress
- 0 116 = Incomplete

References

- Anderson, L. W., & Krathwohl, D. R. (2001). A taxonomy for learning, teaching, and assessing, Abridged Edition. Boston, MA: Allyn and Bacon, and Northeastern University
- Barclay, K. (2011). <u>Humanizing Learning At-a-</u> <u>Distance: Best Practice Guidelines for</u> <u>Synchronous Instructors</u>. In Information Resources Management Association. (2011). Web-based education: Concepts, methodologies, tools and applications. Hershey, Pa: Information Science Reference.
- Clark, R. C. & Mayer, R.E. (2016). *e-Learning* and the Science of Instruction: Proven guidelines for consumers and designers of multimedia learning.
- Darby, F., & Lang, J. M. (2019). Small teaching online: Applying learning science in online classes. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.
- DeVos, B. (August 24, 2020). Secretary DeVos Issues New Distance Learning Regulations to Spur High-Quality Distance and Competency-Based Programs, Better Serve Diverse Population of Higher Education Students. U.S. Department of Education. Retrieved October 28, 2020 from <u>https://www.ed.gov/news/press-</u> releases/secretary-devos-issues-newdistance-learning-regulations-spur-highquality-distance-and-competency-based-

programs-better-serve-diversepopulation-higher-education-students

- Dixson, M.D. (2015). Measuring Student Engagement in the Online Course: the online student engagement scale (OSE). Online Learning, Vol. 19, Issue 4.
- Eccles, J. S., & Midgley, C. (1989). Stage/environment fit: Developmentally appropriate classrooms for early adolescents. In R. Ames & C. Ames (Eds.), *Research on motivation in education* (Vol. 3, pp. 139-181). New York: Academic Press.
- Fink, L.D. (2003). <u>A Self-Directed Guide to</u> <u>Designing Courses for Significant</u> <u>Learning.</u> San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.
- Flipgrid. (2020). Getting started with Flipgrid. *Microsoft*. Retrieved from https://blog.flipgrid.com/gettingstarted
- Fredricks, J.A., Blumenfeld, P.C., and Paris, A.H. (Spring, 2004). School Engagement: Potential of the concepts, state of the evidence. *Review of Educational Research, Vol. 74*, No. 1 (Spring, 2004), pp. 59-109
- Henriksen, D., Creely, E., & Henderson, M. (January 01, 2020). <u>Folk Pedagogies for</u> <u>Teacher Transitions: Approaches to</u> <u>Synchronous Online Learning in the</u> <u>Wake of COVID-19.</u> Journal of

Technology and Teacher Education, 28, 2, 201-210.

Honorlock. (2020). Faculty. Retrieved from https://honorlock.com/faculty/

- In Linder, K. E., In Hayes, C. M., & Thompson, K. (2018). *High-impact practices in* online education: Research and best practices.
- Instructure. (2020b). Where are the Canvas accessibility standards? Retrieved from <u>https://community.canvaslms.com/t5/C</u> <u>anvas-Basics-Guide/What-are-the-</u> <u>Canvas-accessibility-standards/ta-</u> p/1564

Instructure. (2020a). Introduction. Retrieved from <u>https://community.canvaslms.com/t5/G</u> etting-Started/Introduction/ta-p/1285

- Johnson, A. (2013). <u>Excellent online teaching:</u> <u>Effective strategies for a successful</u> <u>semester online.</u>
- Lowenthal, P. R., Dunlap, J. C., & Snelson, C. (December 01, 2017). <u>Live Synchronous</u> <u>Web Meetings in Asynchronous Online</u> <u>Courses: Reconceptualizing Virtual</u> Office Hours. *Online Learning, 21,* 4.)
- Magliaro, B.B. and Burton, J.K. (2005). <u>Direct</u> <u>Instruction Revisited: A Key Model for</u> <u>Instructional Technology</u>. Educational Technology Research and Development,

2005, Vol. 53, No. 4 (2005), pp. 41-55

- Mayer, R. E., Stull, A., Fiorella, L., & Mayer, R.
 E. (June 01, 2020). Five ways to increase the effectiveness of instructional video. *Educational Technology Research and Development, 68*, 3, 837-852.
- Mayer, R. E. (2021). *Multimedia learning*, 3rd Edition. United Kingdom, Cambridge University Press.
- May, D. (2021). What are the benefits of OneNote? ramsac. Retrieved from <u>https://www.ramsac.com/blog/what-</u> <u>are-the-benefits-of-onenote/</u>
- Microsoft. (2020). What is Microsoft Stream? Retrieved from <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-</u> <u>us/stream/overview</u>
- Microsoft. (2021a). Rules for the accessibility checker. Retrieved from <u>https://support.microsoft.com/en-</u> <u>us/office/rules-for-the-accessibility-</u> <u>checker-651e08f2-0fc3-4e10-aaca-</u> <u>74b4a67101c1</u>

Microsoft. (2021b). Use immersive reader for OneNote. Retrieved from <u>https://support.microsoft.com/en-</u> <u>us/office/use-immersive-reader-for-</u> <u>onenote-10712138-b4ed-4513-958d-</u> <u>d9a1b3038170#:~:text=Immersive%20R</u> <u>eader%2C%20included%20in%20OneN</u> <u>ote,of%20content%20in%20OneNote%</u> <u>20documents.&text=For%20OneNote%</u> 20for%20Windows%2010,then%20selec t%20View%20%3E%20Immersive%20R eader

- NC-SARA. (October 1, 2020). U.S. Department of Education Issues Final Rules on Distance Education and Innovation. *NC-SARA*. Retrieved November 5, 2020, from <u>https://nc-sara.org/news-</u> events/us-department-education-issuesfinal-rules-distance-education-andinnovation?utm_source=AdaptiveMailer &utm_medium=email&utm_campaign= All%20SPE%27s%20and%20Institution %20Contacts&org=2562&lvl=100&ite= 39&lea=2482&ctr=0&par=1&trk=a171 R00000RiQ84QAF
- Norman, M. (2017). Synchronous online classes: 10 tips for engaging students. *Faculty Focus.* Retrieved October 21, 2020, from <u>https://www.facultyfocus.com/articles/o</u> <u>nline-education/synchronous-online-</u> <u>classes-10-tips-engaging-students/</u>
- Online@JSU. (n.d.). Getting Started with Microsoft Teams. Jacksonville State University. Retrieved from <u>https://jsu.instructure.com/courses/140</u> <u>65</u>
- Online@JSU. (n.d.) Setting Up a Course to Use Microsoft Teams. Jacksonville State University. Retrieved from <u>https://jsu.instructure.com/courses/294</u> 24

Online@JSU. (2021). A guide for online students and others using online technology. *Jacksonville State University*. Retrieved from <u>http://www.jsu.edu/online/current-</u> students/guide_online_students.html

- Quality Matters.Org. (2020). Specific Review Standards from the QM Higher Education Rubric, Sixth Edition. Quality Matters. Retrieved January 22, 2015 from <u>https://www.qualitymatters.org/sites/de</u> <u>fault/files/PDFs/StandardsfromtheQM</u> <u>HigherEducationRubric.pdf</u>
- Renard, L. (March 28, 2020). Direct instruction - A practical guide to effective teaching. Bookwidgets.com. Retrieved October 28, 2020, from <u>https://www.bookwidgets.com/blog/201</u> <u>9/03/direct-instruction-a-practical-</u> guide-to-effective-teaching
- Rosenshine, B. and Stevens, R. (1986). *Teaching Functions.* In M.C. WITTROCK (dir.), Handbook of Research on Teaching, 3rd Edition., New York, Macmillan, p. 376-391, 1986. Retrieved October 28, 2020, from <u>http://www.formapex.com/barak-</u> <u>rosenshine/112-teaching-</u> <u>functions?616d13afc6835dd26137b409b</u> <u>ecc9f87=339a5ec40f56987efa4d7f134ad</u> b6e31
- Screencast-O-Matic. (2021). Education. Retrieved from <u>https://screencast-o-</u> matic.com/education

Shearer, R. I. (2013). Theory to practice in instructional design. In M. G. Moore (Ed.), *Handbook of Distance Education* (3rd ed., pp. 251-267).

- SUNY Online. (2020.) OSCQR SUNY Online Course Quality Review Rubric. SUNY – The State University of New York. Retrieved November 5, 2020, from <u>https://oscqr.suny.edu/</u>
- Swartzwelder, R. (September 4, 2020). U.S. Department of Education Issues New Distance Education and Related Regulations. *Maynard Cooper*. Retrieved on October 10, 2020 from <u>https://jsu-</u><u>my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/cinm</u> <u>an_jsu_edu/EcdL5STNeZBAhqDylcXV</u> <u>GMsBooChM_imWkXnDgUyB0EqcA?e</u> =oJRU6d

The Center for Teaching & Learning (N.D.). Writing Measurable Course Objectives. UNC-Charlotte. Retrieved February 11, 2021 from <u>https://teaching.uncc.edu/teaching-</u> guides/course-design/writingmeasurable-course-objectives

Top Hat Glossary. (N.D.) Direct Instruction. *Top Hat*. Retrieved October 28, 2020, from <u>https://tophat.com/glossary/d/direct-</u> instruction/

U.S. Department of Education (ND). Summary of Distance Education and Innovation.

U.S. Department of Education. Retrieved October 28, 2020, from <u>https://www2.ed.gov/policy/highered/r</u> <u>eg/hearulemaking/2018/distandinnovfa</u> <u>ctsheet.pdf</u>

- Watermark. (2021). Course evaluation & institutional surveys. Retrieved from <u>https://www.watermarkinsights.com/ou</u> <u>r-approach/course-evaluation-</u> <u>institutional-surveys/</u>
- Weinstein, C., & Mayer, R. (1986). The teaching of learning strategies. In M. C. Wittrock (Ed.), Handbook of research on teaching and learning (3rd ed., pp. 315-327). New York: Macmillan.
- Wesch, M., Darby, F., and Kelly, K. (2020). Welcome to ACUE's Online teaching toolkit. Association of College and University Educators (ACUE). Retrieved October 21, 2020, from <u>https://acue.org/online-teaching-toolkit/</u>.
- Wiggins, G. & McTighe, J. (1998).
 Understanding by Design. Alexandria,
 VA. Association for Supervision and
 Curriculum Development.

Wiggins, G. & McTighe, J. (2005)
Understanding by Design, Expanded 2nd
Edition. Alexandria, VA. Association for
Supervision and Curriculum
Development.

Wilson, K. (2017). Best practices for

synchronous sessions. *Northwestern University, School of Professional Studies.* Retrieved October 21, 2020, from

https://dl.sps.northwestern.edu/blog/20 17/06/best-practices-synchronoussessions/ Zeina, N. E. H. M. E. (June 01, 2008). <u>The</u> Social Arena, Of The Online

Synchronous Environment. The Turkish Online Journal of Distance Education, 2, 9, 238-249.